

Second Amended on 8/21/17 at 5:30 pm to amend Item No. 6A Amended on 8/21/17 at 3:40 PM to renumber Item Nos. 6-7 and add Item No. 6A

AUDIT COMMITTEE Special Meeting Meeting of August 24, 2017 Conference Room A, City Hall 10300 Torre Avenue, Cupertino, CA 5:00 p.m.

## NOTICE AND CALL FOR SPECIAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special meeting of the Audit Committee is hereby called for 24<sup>th</sup> day, August, 2017, commencing at 5:00 p.m. in City Hall Conference Room A, 10300 Torre Avenue, Cupertino, California. Said special meeting shall be for the purpose of conducting business on the subject matters listed below under the heading "Special Meeting".

# SECONDED AMENDED SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA

## 1. CALL TO ORDER

## 2. 5:00 p.m. - ROLL CALL

## 3. 5:02 p.m. - ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

This portion is reserved for persons wishing to address the committee on any matter not on the agenda. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes per person. In most cases, state law will prohibit the committee from making any decision with respect to a matter not listed on the agenda.

## 4. 5:03 p.m. – OLD BUSINESS

None

## 5. 5:05 p.m. - NEW BUSINESS

- A. Auditor AUPs for Investments and Appropriations Limit Crowe & Kristina 45 minutes
  - i. Review Current Proposed AUP by Staff (refer to attachment);
  - ii. Comments by Independent Auditor
  - iii. Approve AUP engagement letters
  - iv. Revise Standard Work Plan for Audit Committee in future years (refer to attachment)

## 6. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

6A. Resignation of member and acting alternate appointment

## 7. 6:00 p.m. - ADJOURNMENT

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), anyone who is planning to attend the next meeting who is visually or hearing impaired or has any disability that needs special assistance should call the City Clerk's Office at 408-777-3223, 48 hours in advance of the meeting to arrange for assistance. Upon request, in advance, by a person with a disability, meeting agendas and writings distributed for the meeting that are public records will be made available in the appropriate alternative format. Also upon request, in advance, an assistive listening device can be made available for use during the meeting.

## Cupertino Audit Committee

Members of the public are entitled to address the members concerning any item that is described in the notice or agenda for this meeting, before or during consideration of that item. If you wish to address the members on any other item not on the agenda, you may do so during the public comment portion of the meeting. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes or less.



Crowe Horwath LLP Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

650 Town Center Drive, Suite 740 Costa Mesa, California 92626-7192 Tel + 1 714 668 1234 Fax + 1 714 668 1235 www.crowehorwath.com

July 25, 2017

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Cupertino, California 10300 Torre Avenue Cupertino, California 95014-3202

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This letter confirms the arrangements for Crowe Horwath LLP ("Crowe" or "us" or "we" or "our") to apply agreed-upon procedures, as discussed in Appendix A, solely to assist you with respect to the Appropriations Limit Worksheet (Worksheet) of the City of Cupertino, California (the "City"). The agreement for auditing services dated February 27, 2017 between the City and Crowe (the "Agreement"), is an integral part of this letter and its terms are incorporated herein.

The agreed-upon procedures will be performed in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In addition, these procedures were suggested by the League of California Cities and presented in their Article XIIIB Appropriations Limitation Uniform Guidelines and are intended assist you in meeting the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City.

Because these procedures will not constitute an examination or review in accordance with standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, we will not express an opinion or conclusion on the compliance with Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution. We have no obligation to perform any procedures beyond those listed in Appendix A. If we were to perform additional procedures other matters might come to our attention that would be reported to you. It is understood that we will prepare a report reflecting our findings of the procedures outlined in Appendix A for use by you. We make no representations as to the adequacy of these procedures for your purpose.

If you decide that additional procedures are needed, we will discuss those with you. It is customary for us to document such revisions, either by memo or by an addendum to this letter. If you wish to add specified users of the report, we will require that they acknowledge in writing their responsibility for the sufficiency of these procedures.

The agreed-upon procedures do not contemplate obtaining the understanding of internal control or assessing control risk, tests of accounting records and responses to inquiries by obtaining corroborating evidential matter, and certain other procedures ordinarily performed during an examination. Thus, this engagement does not provide assurance that we will become aware of significant matters that would be disclosed in an examination. Our engagement cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or illegal acts that may exist. However, we will inform you of any significant errors that may come to our attention. Our engagement will not enable us to address legal or regulatory matters or abuses of management discretion, which matters should be discussed by you with your legal counsel. You are also responsible for the accuracy and completeness of the information provided to Crowe for purposes of this engagement and for timely updating such information. Because of the importance of such information to our engagement, you agree to release Crowe and its personnel from any liability and costs relating to our services under this engagement attributable to the inaccuracy or incompleteness of information provided to us for purposes of this engagement.

Our procedures and work product are intended for the benefit and use of the Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City. This engagement will not be planned or conducted in contemplation of reliance by any other party or with respect to any specific transaction and is not intended to benefit or influence any other party. Therefore, items of possible interest to a third party may not be specifically addressed or matters may exist that could be assessed differently by a third party. The working papers for this engagement are the property of Crowe and constitute confidential information.

Although the actual language of our report may change as a result of our procedures, we presently expect our report on the agreed-upon procedures to read as follows:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City of Cupertino, California (the "City") on the Appropriations Limit Worksheet (Worksheet), related to the City's compliance with Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution during the period ending June 30, 2017. Management is responsible for compliance with Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the City. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

#### Refer to Appendix A.

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on compliance with Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor and the City Council and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the agreed-upon procedures, we will not issue a report as a result of this engagement.

#### FEES

Fees for this engagement and related terms are included in the Agreement.

\* \* \* \* \*

This engagement letter and the Agreement reflect the entire agreement between us relating to the services covered by this letter. The headings included in this letter are to assist in ease of reading only. The letter and the Agreement are to be construed as a single document, with the provisions of each section applicable throughout. This agreement may not be amended or varied except by a written document signed by both parties. It replaces and supersedes any other proposals, correspondence, agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, relating to the services covered by this letter. The agreements of the City and Crowe contained in this engagement letter shall survive the completion or termination of this engagement. If any term hereof is found unenforceable or invalid, this shall not affect the other terms hereof, all of which shall continue in effect as if the stricken term had not been included.

We thank you for selecting Crowe for this engagement. If the terms of this letter are acceptable to you, please sign and date below and return a copy of this letter at your earliest convenience. If you have any questions, please contact Kathy Lai at 714.668.5376.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve your organization.

Very truly yours,

Crowe Horwath LLP

v V. LM By: V. Lai, Partner

I have reviewed the arrangements outlined above and in the Agreement, and I accept on behalf of the City the terms and conditions as stated.

Authorized Representative of the City's Management:

Signature: \_\_\_\_\_\_
Printed Name: \_\_\_\_\_\_
Title:

Date:

Authorized Representative of the City Council:

Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

### APPENDIX A

The procedures to be performed are as follows:

- 1. We will obtain the Worksheet provided by the City and determine that the 2016-2017 Limit and annual adjustment factors were adopted by Resolution of the Honorable Mayor and City Council. We will also determine whether the population and inflation options were selected by a recorded vote of the Honorable Mayor and City Council.
- 2. We will recompute the 2016-2017 Appropriations Limit by multiplying the 2015-2016 Appropriations Limit by the adjustment factors.
- 3. For the Worksheet, we will agree the Per Capita Income, County and City Population Factors to California State Department of Finance Worksheets.



Crowe Horwath LLP Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

650 Town Center Drive, Suite 740 Costa Mesa, California 92626-7192 Tel +1 714 668 1234 Fax +1 714 668 1235 www.crowehorwath.com

July 25, 2017

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Cupertino, California 10300 Torre Avenue Cupertino, California 95014-3202

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This letter confirms the arrangements for Crowe Horwath LLP ("Crowe" or "us" or "we" or "our") to apply agreed-upon procedures, as discussed in Appendix A, solely to assist you with respect to the Investment Policy of the City of Cupertino, California (the "City"). The agreement for auditing services dated February 27, 2017 between the City and Crowe (the "Agreement"), is an integral part of this letter and its terms are incorporated herein.

The agreed-upon procedures will be performed in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City.

Because these procedures will not constitute an examination or review in accordance with standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, we will not express an opinion or conclusion on the Investment Policy. We have no obligation to perform any procedures beyond those listed in Appendix A. If we were to perform additional procedures other matters might come to our attention that would be reported to you. It is understood that we will prepare a report reflecting our findings of the procedures outlined in Appendix A for use by you. We make no representations as to the adequacy of these procedures for your purpose.

If you decide that additional procedures are needed, we will discuss those with you. It is customary for us to document such revisions, either by memo or by an addendum to this letter. If you wish to add specified users of the report, we will require that they acknowledge in writing their responsibility for the sufficiency of these procedures.

The agreed-upon procedures do not contemplate obtaining the understanding of internal control or assessing control risk, tests of accounting records and responses to inquiries by obtaining corroborating evidential matter, and certain other procedures ordinarily performed during an examination. Thus, this engagement does not provide assurance that we will become aware of significant matters that would be disclosed in an examination. Our engagement cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or illegal acts that may exist. However, we will inform you of any significant errors that may come to our attention. Our engagement will not enable us to address legal or regulatory matters or abuses of management discretion, which matters should be discussed by you with your legal counsel. You are also responsible for the accuracy and completeness of the information provided to Crowe for purposes of this engagement and for timely updating such information. Because of the importance of such information to our engagement, you agree to release Crowe and its personnel from any liability and costs relating to our services under this engagement attributable to the inaccuracy or incompleteness of information provided to us for purposes of this engagement.

Our procedures and work product are intended for the benefit and use of the Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City. This engagement will not be planned or conducted in contemplation of reliance by any other party or with respect to any specific transaction and is not intended to benefit or influence any other party. Therefore, items of possible interest to a third party may not be specifically addressed or matters may exist that could be assessed differently by a third party. The working papers for this engagement are the property of Crowe and constitute confidential information.

Although the actual language of our report may change as a result of our procedures, we presently expect our report on the agreed-upon procedures to read as follows:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Honorable Mayor and the City Council of the City of Cupertino, California (the "City"), on the Investment Policy of the City. The City's management is responsible for the Investment Policy. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures enumerated below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

Refer to Appendix A.

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the Investment Policy. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor and City Council and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the agreed-upon procedures, we will not issue a report as a result of this engagement.

### FEES

Fees for this engagement and related terms are included in the Agreement.

\* \* \*

This engagement letter and the Agreement reflect the entire agreement between us relating to the services covered by this letter. The headings included in this letter are to assist in ease of reading only. The letter and the Agreement are to be construed as a single document, with the provisions of each section applicable throughout. This agreement may not be amended or varied except by a written document signed by both parties. It replaces and supersedes any other proposals, correspondence, agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, relating to the services covered by this letter. The agreements of the City and Crowe contained in this engagement letter shall survive the completion or termination of this engagement. If any term hereof is found unenforceable or invalid, this shall not affect the other terms hereof, all of which shall continue in effect as if the stricken term had not been included.

We thank you for selecting Crowe for this engagement. If the terms of this letter are acceptable to you, please sign and date below and return a copy of this letter at your earliest convenience. If you have any questions, please contact Kathy Lai at 714.668.5376.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve your organization.

Very truly yours,

Crowe Horwath LLP

in V. KM By: V. Lai. Partner Katherine

I have reviewed the arrangements outlined above and in the Agreement, and I accept on behalf of the City the terms and conditions as stated.

Authorized Representative of the City's Management:

Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

Authorized Representative of the City Council:

Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

### APPENDIX A

The procedures to be performed are as follows:

- We will obtain the Investment Policy (policy), dated May 1, 2017, approved by the Honorable Mayor and the City Council. We will also obtain the policy, dated May 17, 2016, approved by Honorable Mayor and the City Council. We will compare the investments authorized by the policy with the investments listed in the March 2017 Treasurer's Investment Report to determine if all investment types are allowed by the investment policy.
- We will compare the City's Investment Policy with California Government Code Section 53601 to determine whether the City's Investment Policy complied with California Government Code Section 53601.
- 3. We will compare the March 2017 Treasurer's Investment Report with California Government Code Section 53646 to ensure that the March 2017 Treasurer's Investment Report complied with California Government Code Section 53646.
- 4. We will inquire of the Director of Finance whether investment performance statistics and activity reports are generated on a quarterly basis for presentation to the oversight (audit) committee, City Manager and the Honorable Mayor and the City Council, as required by the Investment Policy.
- 5. We will inquire of the Director of Finance and document our understanding of the wire transfer procedures.
- 6. We will randomly select three investment sales/maturities from various quarters of Treasurer's Reports and perform the following:
  - Trace investment type to the supporting broker's confirmation.
  - Trace the maturity date to the supporting broker's confirmation.
  - Trace the amount of the investment sold to the supporting broker's confirmation.
- 7. We will randomly select two investments purchased (one as of October 2016 and one as of March 2017) for fiscal 2017 from the City's investment files and perform the following:
  - Trace the purchased investments to the corresponding Treasurer's Investment Report for the month in which the investments were acquired.
  - Agree the amount, terms and interest rate to the Treasurer's Investment Report.
  - Verify that the investment type is authorized by the Investment Policy by comparing the type of investment to the allowable types per the Investment Policy.
- 8. We will obtain the Wells Fargo Bank Market/Cost Value Comparison Report, the City's third party investment safekeeping custodian, for March 2017 and trace the following from each investment listed in the Wells Fargo statement to the City's March 2017 Treasurer's Investment Report:
  - Investment description
  - Market value
  - Purchase date
  - Maturity date
  - Coupon rate
- 9. We will trace three randomly selected Federal Agency investments that were purchased in fiscal 2017 and traced the reported ratings to Moody's rating online.

## New Proposed step to be added to Cupertino Investment AUP EL FY17

We will recompute or obtain third-party corroborating evidence of the correct listing of

- Average Yield
- Average length to Maturity (in years)
- Duration

on the March 2017 Treasurer's Investment Report.

# Standard Work Plan for Audit Committee - 2017

Page 1 of 2 Version: August 14, 2017

January Meeting	April Meeting	July Meeting	October Meeting
Treasurer's Report	Treasurer's Report	Treasurer's Report	Treasurer's Report
OPEB Trust	OPEB Trust	OPEB Trust	OPEB Trust
Performance Report	Performance Report	Performance Report	Performance Report
Recommend	Annual reviews of	Interim report on	CAFR
appointment of	City Investment	CAFR by	
auditors (every 3-5	Policy and of OPEB	independent auditor	
years)	Trust Investment		
	Policy		
	PARS Annual	Review and	Review of Auditor
	Presentation on	recommend budget	RFP (every 3-5
	Retiree Health Trust	format	years)
	Performance		
	January 1 <sup>st</sup> OPEB	January 1, 2017	
	Actuarial Report	<b>OPEB</b> Actuarial	
	Review	Report Review	
	Audit Committee		
	provides		
	independent auditor		
	input on interim		
	audit and AUP		
	steps.		

## Summary of Duties – Powers – Responsibilities of Cupertino Audit Committee

## Source: Cupertino, CA Municipal Code, Chapter 2.88.100: Audit Committee

The powers and functions of the Audit Committee shall be as follows:

- A: To review the annual audit report and management letter;
- B: To recommend appointment of auditors;
- C. To review the monthly Treasurer's report;
- D. To recommend a budget format;
- E. To review City investment policies and internal controls of such policies.

## Source: City of Cupertino, Investment Policy, November 18, 2014

<u>PERFORMANCE EVALUATION p3</u> "...Investment performance statistics and activity reports are generated on a quarterly basis for presentation to the oversight (audit) committee, City Manager and City Council..."

<u>OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE p4</u> "An audit committee consisting of appropriate internal and external members, appointed by the City Council, shall be established to provide general oversight and direction concerning the policy related to management of the City's investment pool and OPEB trust. The City Treasurer shall serve in a staff and advisory

# **Standard Work Plan for Audit Committee - 2017**

Page 2 of 2 Version: August 14, 2017

capacity. The committee shall meet at least quarterly to review policy changes, new legislation and portfolio status."

<u>SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES p4</u> "...In order to verify investment holdings, an external auditor, on an annual basis, shall independently verify securities held in custody for the City."

<u>INTERNAL CONTROL</u> p5 "...An independent analysis by an external auditor shall be conducted annually to review internal control, account activity, and compliance with policies and procedures. The analysis shall be reported to the audit committee."

### **Source: City of Cupertino OPEB Trust, Investment Policy Statement, May 6, 2014** <u>CITY OF CUPERTINO AUDIT COMMITTEE p4</u>

- a) Establish, approve, and maintain investment objectives, guidelines, and policies (including this Policy).
- b) Appoint Investment Managers who can be reasonably expected to adhere to the investment guidelines and meet the investment objectives as established.
- c) Monitor the investment performance of the Portfolio and compare actual investment performance relative to an appropriate benchmark index given the stated investment guidelines and objectives set forth in this Policy.
- d) Conduct a formal review of the Portfolio's asset allocation, investment structure and performance annually or more frequently as the need arises.
- e) Periodically review the Portfolio performance against objectives.

<u>INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT REVIEW</u> p5 "The City's Audit Committee will review [and the Cupertino City Council will adopt] this Investment Policy Statement at least annually to determine whether stated investment objectives are still relevant and the continued feasibility of achieving the same."